
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
December 6, 2012, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 1, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Res 12-21, Resolution of Appreciation for Director Jim 


Quigley (Est. time: 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Discussion/Action re USDA Loan and Review of the 2014-


20 Capital Improvement Program (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Progress Report of the Ad Hoc Goals and Objectives 


Formatting Committee  
 Members: Sukey Robb-Wilder, Victoria Wikle (Est. time 10 min.)  
 
D. Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Saddle Failures (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re District Investment Alternatives (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Res. 12-19, Approval of the Third Amendment to the 


General Manager’s Employment Agreement (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 


 
A.  Conference with Real Party Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8 


Property at 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville, CA 
Agency Negotiator: General Manager 
Negotiating Parties: AT&T 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 
 


B. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6   
 District Negotiator: Legal Counsel 
 Unrepresented Employee: General Manager. 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
November 1, 2012 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Gaylord Schaap  
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: Jim Quigley 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Tim Lipinski 
      John Wanger 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Sukey Robb-Wilder at 6:34 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 
p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder requested that Item H (Res. 12-19, Approval of the Third Amendment to the 
General Manager’s Employment Agreement) be moved for discussion/action after Closed Session.  
There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:36 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion 
carried 4-0, except that Director Robb-Wilder abstained from voting on Item III-A (Minutes of the 
October 4, 2012 Board Meeting) because she was not there.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the October 4, 2012 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any (None) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Res. 12-17, Approving an Agreement for 


Engineering Services for CIP 2014 with Coastland Engineering Inc. and 
Authorizing the General Manager to Sign.  The GM provided a brief overview of this 
item.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Tim Lipinski.  Coastland 
engineer John Wanger made additional comments.  Further Board discussion ensued.  
Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 12-17, Approving an Agreement for 
Engineering Services for CIP 2014 with Coastland Engineering.  Director Holmer 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
B. (6:53 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Res. 12-18, Resolution Authorizing an Amendment 


to the Contract (between SSWD and CalPERS).  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to approve Res. 12-18, Authorizing an 
Amendment to the Contract (with CalPERS) to provide for partial service retirement.  
Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


C. (6:56 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2012-13 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 
Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Brief discussion ensued.   


D. (7:08 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District Investment Alternatives.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Public comment was made by Tim Lipinski.  Board discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken.     


 
E. (7:31 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Progress Report of the Ad Hoc Goals and 


Objectives Formatting Committee.  
 Members: Sukey Robb-Wilder, Victoria Wikle  
 Director Robb-Wilder provided a brief update of the Committee’s progress.  No action 


was taken.   
 
F. (7:32 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District’s Emergency Response Plan / 


Participation in disaster preparedness exercises 
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion and questions ensued.  


Public comment was made by Tim Lipinski.  Board discussion continued.  Further public 
comment was made by Tim Lipinski.  No action was taken.   


 
G. (7:55 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Saddles.  The GM provided a brief 


overview of this item.   
 
H. (This item was moved for discussion after Closed Session.) 
 
I. (7:57 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Res. 12-20, Resolution 12-20, Approving an 


Agreement and Grant of Easement with F. Korbel & Sons, Inc. and Accepting Said 
Grant of Easement.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Comments were made by District counsel David Warner.  Director Schaap 
moved to approve Resolution 12-20, Approving an Agreement and Grant of Easement 
with F. Korbel & Sons., Inc. and Accepting Said Grant of Easement.  Director Holmer 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:06 p.m.) 
 


 2







The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Russian River Flow at Hacienda 
5. 2013 CIP 
6. USDA Financing 
7. Monte Rio Recreation and Park District (MRR&P) Wonderland Trail 
8. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
9. In-House Construction Projects 
10. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:20 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder inquired as to when the new Board member gets seated 
 
Legal counsel David Warner announced Meyers Nave AB 1234 (Ethics) Training on December 13  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:32 p.m.) 
 
At 8:32 p.m. President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.   
 


** At 8:33 p.m. the meeting recessed briefly.  The meeting reconvened at 8:42 p.m. ** 
 
The Board went into Closed Session at 8:42 p.m.  At 9:45 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator 
District Negotiator: Legal Counsel 
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager 
Direction was given to Legal Counsel. 


 
 B. Conference with Real Party Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property at 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville, CA 
  Agency Negotiator: General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: AT&T 
  Direction was given to staff. 


 
 
 


VI. ADMINISTRATIVE, con’t. (9:45 p.m.) 
 
H. (9:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Res. 12-19, Approval of the Third Amendment to 


the General Manager’s Employment Agreement.   
 No action was taken on Resolution 12-19.  However, Director Holmer moved to approve 


General Manager Steve Mack’s participation in a CalPERS partial service retirement at a 
reduction in work time of 30 percent.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:50 p.m.) 
 
1. Resolution of appreciation for Jim Quigley 
2. Meeting date for January 
3. Goals and Objectives 


 3







 4


4. Ad hoc goals and objectives 
5. Rio Vista saddles  
6. Investment alternatives  
7. Res. 12-19, General Manager’s employment agreement 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 9:54 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:36 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:06 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:20 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:32 p.m.)



		VI. ADMINISTRATIVE, con’t. (9:45 p.m.)

		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:50 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






Resolution No. 12-21 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT EXPRESSING 


APPRECIATION FOR THE SERVICES OF  
DIRECTOR JIM QUIGLEY AS BOARD MEMBER 


 
WHEREAS, Jim Quigley has been an active Board Member since December of 2008 and was 


earlier a Board Member from May 2005 until December 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jim has been an example of service to this community, and has further dedicated 


considerable time and energy to improving the Sweetwater Springs Water District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jim has always discharged his duties as Board Member, Financial Coordinator, 


Vice President and President of the District in a fair and compassionate manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jim brought his vast experience in water operations to Board meetings in an 


objective and positive way and served on many ad hoc committees for many different important 
subjects;  and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wish to recognize Jim for his five and one half years of 


dedicated service. 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, that: 
 
 1. Jim Quigley be commended for his dedication and commitment to the affairs of the 
District during his tenure as a Board Member, and for the outstanding job he has done during his terms as 
a Board Member. 
  
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and regularly 
adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, 
Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on December 6, 2012 by the following vote: 
 
 APPROVED:  Sukey Robb-Wilder     
    Victoria Wikle,                  
    Gaylord Schaap,      
    Rich Holmer                                           
 
ATTEST:            
  Julie A. Kenny, Clerk of the Board  Stephen Mack, General Manager 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 6, 2012  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REVIEW OF 2014 - 2019 CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM/USDA FUNDING PROGRESS   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the progress of and 
recommendations on the USDA funding investigation and the implications for the 
District’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and provide direction on the USDA 
funding and the 2014-2019 CIP. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has an aggressive Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with a priority aim of 
reducing system water losses.  The CIP has had substantial assistance from the 
Redevelopment program but that is no longer available to assist with future projects, so 
we will need to use reserves, funds developed through water rate revenues or find other 
funding assistance sources.    We have had a substantial number of projects every year 
since 2008.     
 
Recently we have been in discussions with United States Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) regarding getting financing with loan forgiveness for funding our CIP.   We have 
submitted a pre-application, were notified that the District is eligible for funding and had 
a application meeting on November 15 to discuss the prospects for funding and what we 
needed to do to complete an application.  During the meeting the USDA staff informed 
us that the District would not be eligible for loan forgiveness because our financial 
condition was too good – we have too much in our reserves.     
 
With that information staff recommends that we do not pursue USDA funding at this 
time.  The main attraction of the USDA funding was the possibility of loan forgiveness.  
The USDA funding has an attractive interest rate – 2.65% currently – but the costs of 
completing the loan process, which would include an engineer’s report done to USDA 
specifications and bond counsel to complete the Certificate of Participation (the vehicle 
for getting the funds from USDA, similar to a general obligation bond) process, would 
bring costs up to a level that are not particularly attractive.  There’s no real benefit to 
the District in pursuing this.   
 
Staff recommends continuing with the CIP approved in July 2012 (see Table 1) which 
will deplete District reserves as shown in Table 2.  When District reserves reach the 
condition shown for FY 2017, we may want to consider approaching USDA for funding at 
that time.   







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
December 6, 2012 


 


 
We originally approached USDA with the idea of refinancing our debt with them.  We 
were informed early on that USDA does not refinance their debt and we were thinking of 
swapping lower interest debt for the older higher interest debt on our own (which is 
effectively the same thing).  However, the costs of doing the transaction does not make 
this attractive to us.  We haven’t fully investigated these costs but know that they are 
substantial – approximately 15-20% of the total transaction amount and savings to the 
District, if any, would be minimal.     
 
The decision to not continue the application process with USDA will have some 
immediate implications.  The District is under contract with Coastland Engineering to 
design the Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road elements of our CIP with the 
idea that the USDA funding would support construction of both elements and could 
happen next summer.  With the design of Hidden Valley Road not needed until May 
2014, we can tell Coastland to stop that portion of their work.  We will likely get a 
revised or amended contract for the 2015 CIP for Hidden Valley Road and 
Guernewood Lane next fall (October 2013 or so).   
 
Reviewing the approved CIP, as discussed above, the 2014 CIP design is underway.  
In looking at the rest of the approved CIP, staff have no reasons to change the 
recommendations if USDA funding is not pursued.  The total estimated cost of the 5 
years of projects is approximately $4.4 million.  The total wish list of projects is 
approximately $7.3 million, a gap of almost $3 million.  As shown in Table 2, which 
is the multi-year projection of available funding for capital projects, the District 
nears the Policy Reserve levels in the 4th year of this program (FY 2017) but 
recovers by skipping a year.  As mentioned above this may be an appropriate time 
to request additional funding from USDA.    At the end of the planning period, funds 
are available for additional capital programs.   The CIP will be continually monitored, 
of course, and if more funding is available in the future the completion schedule can 
be accelerated.    
 
   







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
December 6, 2012 


 


 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2014-2019 CIP Projects by Year 
Estimated Cost Include Design and Construction Management  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
Cost per 
service Comments 


2014    
 


  
        


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 
5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly, 50 
Services. $936,000 $18,720  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks  


  2014 Total $936,000    
2015       


  


Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf 
of existing main and appurtenances on 
Hidden Valley Rd, 67 Services. $656,000 $9,791  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks; 
need to figure out 
project 


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 
lf of existing main and appurtenances and 
abandon 200 lf of redundant 4 – inch main 
along Hwy 116, 20 Services. $318,000 $15,900  


Has been pushed down 
from past priority lists; 
needed. 


  2015 Total $974,000    
3rd 
Year       


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace 
approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., 
Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd.  $890,000 $13,284  


needed project; moving 
this up. 


  3rd Year  (2016?) Total $890,000    
4th 
Year       


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 
2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. and 
McLane, 37 services.  Loop two deadend 
lines. $688,000 $18,595  


pushed down, but 
needed 


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 
lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692  do with Park Ave. 


  4rd (2017?) Year Total $814,000    
5th 
Year       


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
December 6, 2012 


 


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated 
services along Woodland Dr in the main 
pressure zone.   $400,000 $14,815    


  
Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement $130,000 NA 


Investigation/analysis 
needed on replacing 
this 


  5th Year (2019?) Total $805,000    
        
  Priority List (5 Years) Total $4,419,000    
        
  Other Projects     


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace 
approximately 3,000 ft of existing mainline 
and 47 associated services along 
Highland Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, 
Laurel Way and Morningside Drive. 
(requires completion of Schoeneman 
Tank) $744,300 $15,836    


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000   Do with Main Street 


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 
ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction 
of the existing hydro-pneumatic pump 
station. $490,000  


Do we wait on 
development for these 
tanks?  Does new 
development 
contribute? 


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon storage tank with a 30,000 
storage tank.   2005 cost estimate $190,000    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000    


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. 
(requires completion of Natoma Tank) $800,000 $17,021    


  Other Projects Total  $2,811,300    
        


  Total Projects Amount $7,230,300    







Water Rate Increase = 3% Starting in FY12; Sales reduce 4%/year
1.5% 2.2% Effective Rate Increases, CIP Revised


11-12 (FY12)
Rev BUDGET FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21


1 REVENUE
4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction C 235,000 235,000 293,750 367,188 404,300      404,300      404,300             404,300       404,300        404,300        
4031.1. · Water Sales 1,770,000 1,796,550 1,823,498 1,850,851 1,891,569 1,933,184 1,975,714 2,019,180 2,063,602 2,109,001


2 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,005,000 2,031,550 2,117,248 2,218,038 2,295,869 2,337,484 2,380,014 2,423,480 2,467,902 2,513,301
3 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 137,700 126,010 126,828 127,654 128,489 129,332 130,183 131,043 131,911 132,789


4 Total Income 2,142,700 2,157,560 2,244,076 2,345,693 2,424,358 2,466,816 2,510,197 2,554,523 2,599,813 2,646,089


5 EXPENSES
6 OPERATING EXPENSES
7 835,323 847,296 861,475 877,720 894,530 911,680 929,170 947,010 965,210 983,770
8 280,200 294,957 303,911 313,574 323,642 334,131 345,059 356,446 368,314 380,685
9 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,115,523 1,142,253 1,165,386 1,191,294 1,218,172 1,245,811 1,274,229 1,303,456 1,333,524 1,364,455


10 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1% Except for Rent


11 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 509,390 514,140 518,937 523,783 528,676 534,479 540,353 546,299 552,317 558,410


12 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,624,913 1,656,393 1,684,323 1,715,077 1,746,849 1,780,290 1,814,582 1,849,755 1,885,841 1,922,865


13 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $517,787 $501,167 $559,753 $630,616 $677,510 $686,526 $695,616 $704,768 $713,972 $723,224


14 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 15,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000
15 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
16 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Reven 235,000 235,000 293,750       367,188        404,300      404,300      404,300             404,300       404,300        404,300        
17 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 220,000 220,000 200,000 210,000 200,000 230,000 220,000 250,000 240,000 270,000
18 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 495,000 495,000 533,750 617,188 644,300 674,300 664,300 694,300 684,300 714,300
19 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 7,787 1,167 3 8,429 7,210 7,226 5,316 5,468 3,672 3,924


20 Capital Budget
21 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
22 Net Operating Revenues* 227,787 221,167 200,003 218,429 207,210 237,226 225,316 255,468 243,672 273,924
23 Total Assessments 777,000 777,001 777,002 777,003 777,004 777,005 777,006 777,007 777,008 777,009
24 Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 235,000       235,000       293,750     367,188     404,300    404,300    404,300          404,300     404,300     404,300     
25 Capital Interest 25,000         30,000         10,000       10,000       10,000      10,000      10,000            10,000       10,000       10,000       
26 CDC Grants 751,100       974,250       
27 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 500,000         200,000         810,000       760,000        650,000      540,000      370,000       
28 TOTAL REVENUE 2,515,887 2,437,418 2,090,755 2,132,619 2,048,514 1,968,531 1,416,622 1,816,775 1,434,980 1,465,233
29
31 Total Debt Payments 1,091,314      1,091,314      1,091,314    1,091,314     1,091,314   1,091,314   1,091,314          1,091,314    1,091,314     1,067,760     
32
33 CIP 2012 CIP 2013 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021
34 Annual CIP 1,355,000 1,299,000 936,000 974,000 890,000 814,000 805,000     ??
35 In-House Construction Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
36 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,486,314 2,430,314 2,067,314 2,105,314 2,021,314 1,945,314 1,131,314 1,936,314 1,131,314 1,107,760
37 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 29,573 7,104 23,441 27,305 27,200 23,217 285,308 -119,539 303,666 357,473
38
39 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
42 Ending Funds ab District Policy 3,022,842    2,829,946    2,043,387  1,310,692     687,891      171,108      456,416             (33,123)        270,542        628,015        


* =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus
** =Transfers to CDRC


Table 2.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
PLANNING SUMMARY 


EXPENSES


Total Benefits
Total Salary


 





		Meeting Date: December 6, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Sukey Robb-Wilder, President 
 


 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROGRESS REPORT OF THE AD HOC GOALS 
AND OBJECTIVES FORMATTING COMMITTEE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update from the ad hoc Committee on Goals and 
Objectives. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 


Sukey Robb-Wilder and Victoria Wikle met with General Manager Steve Mack on 
November 15 and continued to review the District’s Goals and Objectives document.  
They have found that some of the items are implicit in the District’s Mission 
Statement on the District's website, such as the goal to provide reliable and high 
quality potable water.  Other items are tasks that have been completed, such as 
establishing a district reserve policy.  Still others need periodic review, such as 
disaster preparedness plans and emergency exercises.   Some items in the Goals 
and Objectives document are procedural and others are more policy-oriented than 
procedural, such as the goals of providing public outreach and enhancing board 
communications.  


The document in its present form has been a useful organizing tool for the Board.  It 
is a good historical reference but it could be replaced with a structure that is more 
workable today, especially for those items that to be reviewed periodically.  Steve 
will put together a structure for review at the next Committee meeting. 


   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 6, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE FAILURES 
RESOLUTION  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
W.R. Forde replaced 18 saddles during the week of July 30.  All saddles associated with 
this project have been replaced in an acceptable manner.  As reported in recent 
meetings the only outstanding issue is payment for the investigation done June 20-22 
($18,700).  I submitted the additional information requested by Travelers Insurance, the 
project surety and have had informal settlement discussions by email with a 
representative of W.R. Forde – I will present information on those discussions verbally at 
the Board meeting.  I expect to hear from the surety shortly if we don’t resolve this 
directly with W.R. Forde.       
 
 





		Meeting Date: December 6, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT INVESTMENT ALTERNATIVES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and give staff direction on investment of 
District funds. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  small, as discussed below.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the last two meetings the Board has discussed options regarding the Redwood Credit 
Union Certificate of Deposit (CD) that expired early in October.  The Board directed staff 
to investigate other investment options available to the District prior to making a 
decision on reinvesting into any CD.  As a reminder, the value of the CD when it expired 
was approximately $672,925.  The interest rate of this CD had been 5% annually.  The 
renewal rate is 1.25%.  The funds from this CD were deposited into the County of 
Sonoma Pooled Investment Program on October 8, 2012.   
 
We have found that current Sonoma County credit union CDs include the following:   
 


• Redwood Credit Union – 1.25%, 5 years 
• Community First CU - 0.6%, 3 years 
• Patelco FCU - 2.0%, 7 years (may be ending October 31) and I don’t know 


anything about eligibility requirements 
• Sonoma FCU - 0.75%, 5 years 
• Sonoma County Grange CU - 0.5%, 3 years (don’t think we are eligible for 


membership) 
 
The County of Sonoma Pooled Investment Program (PIP) recently made their quarterly 
report available.  Their interest earnings of present investments is 0.818% after 
expenses.  Their report shows a comparison to the investment returns of the Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is another very safe investment option available 
to the District, and currently is below 0.5%.     
 
At the last meeting David Warner mentioned his involvement with the California Special 
Districts Association (CSDA) and that they have an investment program that may be 







District Investment Alternatives   2  
December 6, 2012 


appropriate for the District.  He passed on information on their investment program – 
it’s called CalTrust, Investment Trust of California.  It’s open to public agencies in 
California and has a long list of public agency participants including the County of 
Sonoma (but no other Sonoma County cities or districts that I noticed).   
 
With respect to risk of investing in CalTRUST, the website has the following statement: 
 


Investments in CalTRUST, like investments in other types of bond funds, are subject primarily to 
interest rate risk and credit risk. 


Interest rate risk is the potential for a decline in bond prices -- and hence the market value of 
bonds in the portfolio -- due to rising market interest rates. In general, bond prices vary inversely 
with interest rates. The change in a bond’s price depends on several factors, including its maturity 
date. In general, bonds with longer maturities are more sensitive to changes in interest rates than 
bonds with shorter maturities. Similarly, bond funds with longer average portfolio maturities, 
such as the CalTRUST Medium-Term and Long-Term Accounts, will be more sensitive to 
interest rate changes than those with shorter average portfolio maturities, such as the CalTRUST 
Short-Term account.  


Credit risk is the possibility that a deterioration in the underlying creditworthiness of an issuer 
will adversely affect the value of its outstanding bonds or that a bond issuer will fail to make 
timely payments of interest or principal on its outstanding bonds (default). A decline in a bond 
issuer’s credit rating, or creditworthiness, may cause prices for its outstanding bonds to decline.  


Similar to shares in a bond mutual fund, the value of CalTRUST shares will change with market 
conditions, as will the value of an agency’s investment account. An agency could lose money on 
an investment in a CalTRUST account or an investment in a CalTRUST account could 
underperform other investments.  
 
The recent performance of CalTRUST is similar to that of the Sonoma County Pooled 
Investment Program.  It offers the possibility of added diversification, but we shouldn’t 
expect additional (or less, either) interest income if we move some of our reserves into 
this program.   
 
One thing to consider is that if we decide not to pursue USDA funding, the District will 
be drawing down its reserves.  Having funds in multiple locations will make that more 
complex.  Of course, the District Reserve Policy dictates that the District keep around $1 
million in Policy Reserves – that amount will always need to be placed somewhere.   
  
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F  
 
FROM: David Warner, District Counsel 
 


Meeting Date: December 6, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO 
GENERAL MANAGER'S EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION: After discussions/direction in closed session consider 
adopting Resolution 12-19, approving a Third Amendment to the At-Will 
Employment Agreement with Stephen F. Mack and Authorizing the Board 
President to Execute Said Amendment. 


.  
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  to be determined.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


Steve Mack was hired as General Manager of the District as of September 2, 
2008.  The terms and conditions of employment are described in an At-Will 
Employment Agreement (“Original Agreement”), dated September 2, 2008.   At 
the October 1, 2009 meeting the Board approved the First Amendment to the 
Original Agreement.  There was no amendment to the contract in 2010.  On 
November 3, 2011, the Board approved the Second Amendment to the Original 
Agreement.  The Board will be having a closed session on negotiations for a Third 
Amendment at the December 6 meeting.  If agreement is reached on the Third 
Amendment, this amendment can be approved in open session by adopting 
Resolution 12-19.   
 





		Meeting Date: December 6, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 6, 2012  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in September were 22,218 


units (51.0 AF, Monte Rio cycle) and production was 71.6 AF.  Compared to 
one year ago, sales and production this October were higher (49.0 AF and 
61.2 AF, respectively).  The annual average difference between sales and 
production increased compared to the prior month, 26.4%.   Figure 1 shows 
the 12 month moving averages since September 2006, data are available 
back to May 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  In October we had 9 total leaks and spent 36 man-hours on them.   


Those are fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and 
more leaks but fewer man-hours compared to October one year ago (7 
leaks, 50 man-hours).  Figure 2 is continued showing service and main leaks 
separately with a total breaks line as well.  The annual average is staying 
below the 200 per year mark and the 12 month average of service leaks 
continues to be more than main leaks numbers.  The trendlines continue to 
show main breaks are dropping and service breaks flat for the data since 
September 2006.       


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall: Rainy season is on its way, so the cumulative annual 


Guerneville rainfall chart has been added.  At the time this report was written 
(November 29), cumulative rainfall in Guerneville was approximately 11 
inches which is below the long-term average, but a series of rain storms are 
predicted for the end of the month – I’ve added 4 inches of rain for the 
month which puts us a bit above average for this time of year.   This is a 
good start for the rainy season.        


 
5. 2013 CIP:  The Lovers Lane and Canyon Seven elements of the 2013 CIP 


are completed.  Construction has moved over to the Monte Rio elements – 
Mainling on Starrett Hill Road is approximately half completed and Middle 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 5 
December 6, 2012 


Terrace will be next.   This project is behind schedule and spilling into the 
rainy season is not helping that.     


 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   The Direct Install program has 


been popular.  We believe the available funding has been exhausted.  The 
most current (unverified) accounting is 16 direct install projects have been 
completed, five more have been authorized and 31 are on a wait list or are  
pending               


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were three in-house projects 


reported for October requiring 146 man-hours.  The largest job was 
replacement of 450 feet of water line near Northwood Golf Course requiring 
107 man-hours.  This project fixed a leak that had been going on for some 
time – perhaps as long as six months or longer.  Other jobs included a saddle 
replacement on Old Cazadero Road (18 man-hours) and installation of 130 
feet of one inch line on Foothill Road near the intersection with Old River 
Road in Guerneville (21 man-hours).      


 
8.  Gantt Chart:   December in the Gantt Chart shows 2013 CIP construction 


completed.  It’s going much slower than that with little over half completed.  
Also, the Gantt Chart shows we should be starting on design of the 2014 CIP 
and that is happening.    The Gantt Chart shows discussion of the CIP at the 
December meeting – of course, we’ve been talking about that all summer 
and fall and it’s on the agenda for this meeting.   


 
 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 5 
December 6, 2012 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Jan-
07


May-
07


Sep-
07


Jan-
08


May-
08


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks
Total Leaks
Linear (Main Breaks)
Linear (Service Breaks)
Linear (Total Leaks)


 







General Manager’s Report  4 of 5 
December 6, 2012 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2013


-


 
 
 
 


 







Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 FY 14+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2013-14 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


•        2013 CIP Award of Contract


•        2013 CIP Construction Starts


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


2010 Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and 
Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r
Nov


em
be


r
Dec


em
be


r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry


Marc
h


Apri
l


May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t
Sep


tem
be


r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2013


-


 





		Meeting Date: December 6, 2012 



